
State of Arkansas Department of Human Services

Attachment B

RFP #710-23-0037

Clarification Questions Template

Questio

n ID

Reference (page number, section 

number, paragraph)

Specific Language Question Answers

Example Page 7, section 1.15,  C J. Vendors may submit multiple bid May vendors submit more than one bid? yes See section 1.15, J

1 Attachment I-Technical Response Packet, 

section E.2, Company and Staff Information 

and Experience on page 7 of 9 

Contractors are requested to review Appendix 3 

in the bidder’s library to serve as a reference 

point for determining the staff management 

proposal detailed within this staffing management 

plan

Could the State please provide or advise vendors where the link to the bidder’s 

library is located within the solicitation documents?

The bidder's library consists of all appendices (1 - 6) posted on 

the website. 

2 Attachment I; Page 5 of 9 Information for 

Evaluation 

E.1; E.2; E.3; and E.5 The sections are labeled E.1 through E.5 however, it appears that 

section E.4 is missing, was this intentional? Does the State plan to 

make an adjustment to Attachment I. 

Refer to Addendum 4 and revised Attachment I.. 

3 Attachment I; Pages 5 and 6 of 9 section E.1 

and section E.2

B. Attachment H – Client History Form 

completed and signed.

The state is requesting a completed and signed copy of Attachment H-

Client History Form twice. It's required in section E.1 and E.2; is it the 

government's intention to ask vendors to submit duplicates as part 

Technical Response Packet. 

Only one completed and signed copy of the Client History 

Form is required.  The Client History Form is referenced in 

Attachment I sections E.1 and E.2 to show vendors what is 

included in the Minimum Qualifications and what sections 

will be given specific points after Minimum Qualifications are 

met.

4 Attachment I; Pages 5 and 6 of 9 section E.1 

and section E.2

B. Attachment H – Client History Form 

completed and signed.

Please confirm that Attachment H does not count toward the 25 page 

count for E.2.

Confirmed.  Attachment H does not count towards the 25 

page count for E.2.

5 Attachment I-Technical Response Packet, 

section E.2 - Company and Staff Information 

and Experience on page 7 of 9

There is reference to a "Bidder's Library" The instructions state, “Contractors are requested to review Appendix 3 

in the bidder’s library to serve as a reference point for determining the 

staff management proposal detailed within this staffing management 

plan”. Could the State please provide or advise vendors where the link 

to the bidder’s library is located within the solicitation documents? This 

will aid bidder's in developing our Staffing Management Plan For the 

PMO.

The bidder's library has been published with the solicitation 

and it is comprised of Appendix 1 through 6. Vendors are 

encouraged to review Appendix 1 through 6 in developing the 

staffing management plan.

6 RFP Solicitation Document; Page 4 of 71; 

Section 1.8 RESPONSE DOCUMENTS (B)

B.     Official Bid Price Sheet. The solicitation states "1.Contractor’s original Official Bid Price Sheet 

and the Cost Proposal Template must be submitted in hard copy 

format". Please confirm the number of hard copies required for the 

Official Bid Price Sheet and Cost Proposal Template.

One hard copy

7 RFP Solicitation Document; Page 46 of 71, 

R129

The PMO Contractor shall provide 

performance-tuning recommendations to 

development and maintenance teams (i.e., 

index recommendations, code efficiencies).

Can the state clarify the specific application solutions within the state's 

perview where the contractor will have access to code and database 

documentation in order to perform this service? 

Vendor shall provide performance tuning recommendation to 

any of the systems the vendor will have access to during the 

contract.  The contractor shall  have staff with technical 

expertise to be able to offer guidance or assist with 

troubleshooting.  Example would be Disaster Recovery – 

normal (before cloud) was 24 to 72 hours – today that could 

be 1 to 4 hours.

8 RFP Solicitation Document; Page 46 of 71, 

R129

The PMO Contractor shall provide 

performance-tuning recommendations to 

development and maintenance teams (i.e., 

index recommendations, code efficiencies).

Can the state confirm that this service would NOT apply to a third party 

vendor COTS solution?

Confirmed. This service would NOT apply to a third party 

vendor COTS solution.  

9 RFP Solicitation Document; Page 59, 2.4.2 The FTE counts presented below are the 

best estimates at the time of RFP 

finalization.

Will the state consider replacing this sentence with the following:  'The 

FTE counts presented below should be considered a baseline staffing 

level to address the scope of this RFP.  Vendors are encouraged to add 

staff where they feel additional FTEs are required based on the 

requirements.'

The FTE counts of the non key resources are based on the 

anticipated workload of the PMO and the total cost of these 

non key resources will be calculated based on the rate card 

provided in Tab 3 (Hourly Rate Card) of the Attachment G1 - 

Cost Proposal Template.  The counts and calculations shown 

in Tab 2 (Non Key Personnel Cost) in Attachment G1 do not 

represent guaranteed work and are for evaluation purposes 

only.  The total number of non key personnel will be finalized 

during contract negotiations.  The State will not consider 

updating this section in the RFP Solicitation Document.

10 RFP Solicitation Document; Page 24 of 71, 

R36

The PMO Contractor shall be in charge of 

documenting and distributing to relevant 

DHS stakeholders all agendas, meeting 

minutes, and other information required for 

the project's successful implementation.

Does this requirement include meetings not created and managed by 

the PMO?

This requirement applies to all projects managed by the 

PMO Vendor, and any additional meetings the State requests 

of them.

11 RFP Solicitation Document; Page 28 of 71, 

R49

The PMO Contractor shall use an electronic 

document repository approved by DHS for 

project documents and deliverables. The 

PMO Contractor, designated DHS staff, and 

other DHS Vendors with the appropriate 

security level must have the ability to 

upload/attach new or revised versions of 

documents. The repository must perform 

version control and allow users to view all 

prior versions.

Does the State require the vendor to provide an electronic document 

repository with the functionality described?

The vendor is not required to provide a document 

management system. Currently DHS uses SharePoint and 

JIRA software (Plugins under evaluation). The Vendor will be 

expected to work within this environment. 

12 RFP Solicitation Document; Page 28 of 71, 

R50

The PMO Contractor shall support and 

contribute to the DHS’s and/or the Systems 

Integration Services collaboration site, 

technical and nontechnical project(s) 

artifacts for all DHS projects and programs, 

including but not limited to requirements, use 

cases, user stories, storyboards, system 

design documents, supplemental 

specifications, test cases, test scripts, test 

results, user, system, and training 

documentation at DHS's direction.  

Would the State provide additional information about the location and 

functionality of the Systems Integration Services collaboration site?

This requirements says "PMO Contractor shall support and 

contribute to the DHS’s and/or the Systems Integration 

Services collaboration site", the intention of the "and/or" is to 

clarify that the vendor shall support and contribute either 

directly to a DHS's supported site OR to a DHS approved 

(internal or third party) approved System Integrator Site.  

Currently there is no System Integrator Site available.  The 

State utilizes SharePoint and JIRA for artifact repositories. 

the PMO Vendor is required to contribute content to State 

managed sites.

13 RFP Solicitation Document; Page 29 of 71, 

R55

The PMO Contractor shall be responsible 

for maintaining a hardware and software 

inventory for DHS. As part of this asset 

management function, the PMO Contractor 

will also be responsible for procurement and 

acquisition support, tracking end of life, and 

budgeting.  

Is the expectation of the State that the PMO Contractor manage all 

DHS hardware and software, as stated in the requirement?                                                                                                                                                  

Would the State provide a current listing of all hardware and software 

this requirement is intended to address?

The expectation of the State for the PMO Contractor to 

manage all DHS hardware and software related to the 

projects managed by the PMO only. 

The State provides the following example list of hardware 

and software this requirement is intended to address: Agirar, 

Carahsoft, Centrify, CrossBrowser, Erwin, Goanimate, 

Informatica, JAMA, JIRA, JIRA Plugins, JAWS, Jprofiler, 

Level Access, LogRocket, Moveit, Nexpose, OpenText 

Exstream, Oracle, Toad, SmartyStreets, Tenableio, DB2, 

Trustwave, Snowflake, Cognos, Websphere, OpCon, Qtest, 

AWS, PowerBI.

The Vendor is expected to use and/or develop software 

inventories for ARIES, ARfocus, MMIS and other related 

vendors, and manage the procurement/renewals of the 

individual software components.  This includes for example, 

but is not limited to, requesting quotes, reconciliation against 

budget and APDs, validating quantities, validating need, 

submission to appropriate State approvers, tracking and 

invoice payments.

The Vendor is expected to create/develop a process for 

managing software inventories (currently multiple excel 

spreadsheets and JIRA tracking tickets) and End User 

Licenses Agreements (EULA). EULAs must be reviewed and 

approval by legal, security and privacy prior to purchase. 

14 RFP Solicitation Document; Page 34 of 71 

R86

The PMO Contractor shall participate in 

State Software Development Life Cycle 

(SDLC) gate reviews and inform DHS of 

significant risks or issues as each Medicaid 

Enterprise System module is planned, 

developed, and deployed.

Would the State provide the official State SDLC Gate Review process? DHS is currently renewing all major MMIS vendors and will 

be developing NEW DDI Standard Operating Processes and 

Procedures with each new MMIS vendor: Core, DSS, 

Pharmacy, EVV, etc. 

The PMO will assist with the creation, review and approval 

process of each vendor's proposed methodologies and assist 

in aligning them with State standards.

15 Cost Proposal Template Fixed Price Cost tab, Instructions to 

Respondents: Bidders are required to 

provide an on site and offsite hourly rate for 

each personnel category provided below. All 

bidders should assume that each personnel 

category presented below is required to be 

onsite in Little Rock, Arkansas 50% of the 

time. The rate card provided below will not 

be evaluated as part of the overall cost 

proposal score, however, the rate card 

presented shall become binding following 

award. The rate card may be negotiated 

during contract negotiations. The hourly 

rates provided in the rate card will be used 

to calculate the final contract and/or scope 

of work expenses. 

On the Fixed Price Cost tab, the Instructions to Respondents do not 

appear to align with the way the input fields are structured lower on that 

same tab. Base Contract Year total instead of onsite/offsite hourly 

rates. Are there different instructions for the Fixed Price Cost tab, or is 

there additional clarity the state wants to provide respondents to ensure 

apples-to-apples costing/pricing?

Bidders are required to fill out all cells highlighted in yellow. 

Cells not highlighted are auto calculated and should not be 

modified. Bidders shall enter, for each Key Personnel listed 

on the table below, the Base Contract Cost for each Year 1-3 

(columns F- H), and the Optional Cost for Years 1-4 (columns 

I-L).

16 Cost Proposal Template Non Key Personnel Cost tab, Instructions to 

Respondents: Total FTE Count (Non-Key: 

70 FTE)

On the Non Key Personnel Cost tab, the Instructions to Respondents 

shows a Total FTE Count (Non-Key: 70 FTE) yet row 31 shows a Total 

121. Please clarify the expectation for Non Key Personnel 

costing/pricing.

Refer to Addendum 4 and revised Attachment G1 Cost 

Proposal Template. 

17 RFP Solicitation Document; Section 5   page 

70 of 71

3. Bid Submission The solicitation states “The signature must be in ink. Unsigned bids 

shall be disqualified. The person signing the bid should show title or 

authority to bind his firm in a contract.”                                                                                               

Given many corporations or companies have leadership teams that are 

geographically dispersed; would the state consider the use of 

“DocuSign or other forms of electronic signatures in the "Original" 

hardcopy submission? 

Yes, electronic signatures are acceptable as defined in § 19-

11-203 (29).

Instructions
This Response Template must be used for submission of written questions.  All questions should provide the requested information. Those that do not, may not be answered by DHS.  The Vendor may add as many lines 

as needed.  DHS would strongly prefer the Vendor to ask multi-part questions as individual questions on separate lines.

Instructions:  Complete all cells of each question asked in the Table below.  Clearly identify the referenced section or text.
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